
Ds:CPC/2015/2015-01-20 Minutes.doc  1 

CITY OF RICHARDSON 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES – JANUARY 20, 2015 

 

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on January 20, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the 

Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Barry Hand, Chairman 

  Gerald Bright, Vice Chair 

  Janet DePuy, Commissioner 

  Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner 

  Thomas Maxwell, Commissioner 

  Randy Roland, Commissioner 

  Bill Ferrell, Alternate 

  Stephen Springs, Alternate 

 

MEMBER ABSENT: Eron Linn, Commissioner 

   

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director – Dev. Svcs – Planning  

  Israel Roberts, Development Manager 

  Chris Shacklett, Senior Planner 

  Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary 

 

BRIEFING SESSION 
 

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff 

regarding staff reports, agenda items and a work session.  No action was taken. 

 

MINUTES 

 

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of January 6, 2015. 
 

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second by 

Commissioner DePuy.  Motion passed 7-0. 

 

CONSENT ITEMS 
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission 

and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate discussion of 

these items unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for 

separate consideration. 

 

2. Site, Landscape and Elevation Plans – Pollo Tropical (companion to Item 4):  A request for 

approval of site, landscape and elevation plans for the development of a 3,641 square foot 

drive thru restaurant.  The 0.82-acre site is located at 106 W. Campbell Road, north side of 

Campbell Road west of Alamo Drive.   

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

January 20, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-01-06 Minutes.doc  2 

3. Preliminary Plat – Ingram Terrace:  A request for approval of a preliminary plat for a 62 

lot single family subdivision with private streets.  The 8.6-acre site is located at 5401 E. 

Renner Road, on the northeast corner of Renner Road and Brand Road.   

 

Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as 

presented; second by Commissioner Frederick.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Replat – K-Mart Plaza Addition Lots 1B and 4, Block 1 (companion to Item 2):  
Consider and take necessary action on a request for approval of a replat of Lot 1, Block 1 of 

the K-Mart Plaza addition into two (2) lots.  The 11.67-acre site is located at 106 and 110 W. 

Campbell Road, north side of Campbell Road west of Alamo Drive. 

 

Mr. Roberts stated the purpose of the replat was to create two (2) lots for the development of 

a drive-thru restaurant as well dedicating access easements to accommodate the replat.  He 

added the replat complied with the City’s subdivision regulations. 

 

With no questions for the staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Joshua Milsap, Bury, Inc., representing Leon Capital Group, 5310 Harvest Hill Road, 

Dallas, Texas said he was available for any questions and respectfully asked the Commission 

to approve the replat. 

 

No questions were asked and no further comments were received in favor or opposed.  

Chairman Hand closed the public hearing. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Springs made a motion to approve Item 4 as presented; second by 

Commissioner DePuy.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

5. Replat – Palisades Town Central Addition:  Consider and take necessary action on a 

request for approval of a replat of the Palisades Central Addition, Lots 1 – 3, 4B, 5A-7A, 8-

11, Block A and reserve parcel C into 101 single-family lots, 22 common area lots and nine 

(9) additional lots with private streets.  The 76.23-acre site is located at the northeast corner 

of Collins Boulevard and Palisades Boulevard. 

 

Mr. Roberts reported the applicant was requesting a replat to dedicate the private streets and 

lots necessary for the development of the single-family portion of the new Palisades PD.  He 

added that the remaining lots would be back before the Commission at a later date when the 

developer begins development and, at that time, the realignment of the ring road would be 

finalized.  

 

Mr. Roberts confirmed the replat complied with the City’s subdivision standards, the 

previously approved preliminary plat and Ordinance 4051. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

January 20, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-01-06 Minutes.doc  3 

Chairman Hand called for questions for the staff and with none, opened the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Matt Duenwald, Kimley-Horn and Associates, representing JP-Palisades, LLC, 12750 

Merit Drive, Dallas, Texas, stated he was available for any questions. 

 

No questions were asked and no other comments in favor or opposed were received.  

Chairman Hand closed the public hearing. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Ferrell made a motion to approve Item 5 as presented; second by 

Commissioner Roland.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

6. Zoning File 14-39 – Drive-thru Restaurant (continued from January 6, 2015 meeting):  

Consider and take necessary action on a request for a change in zoning from C-M 

Commercial District with special conditions to PD Planned Development District to allow a 

restaurant with drive-thru service and other site modifications on property located at 811 S. 

Central Expressway, northeast corner of Central Expressway and Spring Valley Road. 

 

Mr. Shacklett advised the applicant was requesting to rezone approximately 4.9 acres from 

C-M with special conditions to PD Planned Development with modified development 

standards to accommodate the construction of a drive-thru restaurant as well as modifying 

development standards for the remainder of the property. 

 

Mr. Shacklett stated the property was located at the northeast corner of US 75 and Spring 

Valley Road and was currently developed as a six-story office building with an additional 

1,300 square foot motor bank.  He added the restaurant would be located at the hard corner of 

the property and if the PD was approved as presented, the applicant would have the ability to 

split the restaurant lot off from the remainder of the property without causing any issues with 

the parking deficiencies. 

 

Regarding the parking deficiency, Mr. Shacklett noted the site has historically been under-

parked at 186 spaces instead of the required 257 spaces for an office building.  However, 

based on two parking studies by the applicant and confirmed by the staff, the requested 177 

parking spaces should be adequate for both the office building and the restaurant. 

 

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by acknowledging the site in question was part of 

the larger Main Street/Central Expressway study, but not part of the Phase I rezoning 

recently approved by the City Council; however, the applicant was proposing a design that 

would be in keeping with design features of the Main Street Phase I study and Spring Valley 

rezoning projects.    

 

Commissioner Roland asked how the signage for the restaurant would be handled.  He also 

wanted to know if there was anyway the property would be able to conform to the required 

parking with or without the restaurant. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

January 20, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-01-06 Minutes.doc  4 

Mr. Shacklett replied that because the site was located at the convergence of three guidelines 

– US 75, Spring Valley Station and West Spring Valley, staff asked the applicant to note on 

their proposed site plan a place for a gateway marker until the City makes a decision on a 

theme for the area.   

 

Regarding the required parking, Mr. Shacklett confirmed that without the restaurant the site 

would need another 80 parking spaces, but with the proposed plan the current parking would 

actually increase by one space. 

 

Commissioner Frederick asked for clarification on the current and proposed sidewalks. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied the current sidewalk is 4 to 5 feet in width at back of curb and does not 

go all the way up the frontage road side of the property, but the applicant was proposing to 

increase the width to 8 feet and extend the length north along the frontage road. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked how close the current site was to the Spring Valley DART 

station, and wanted to know what type of business was on the adjoining property. 

 

Mr. Shacklett said that property was just over one-quarter mile away from the station and the 

business next door was a Super 8 motel. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if the previous visions for this property included a stand-alone 

restaurant or was it a restaurant as part of a larger development. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied the vision was most likely a free-standing, sit-down restaurant as part 

of a larger development, but he did not think the earlier studies prohibited drive-thru 

restaurants.  He added that if the property was rezoned as a whole, it would most likely be 

zoning similar to the Main Street/Central rezoning with urban design characteristics and 

drive-thru restaurants would require a Special Permit. 

 

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Jarrod Blake, representing BH Properties Management, Inc., 1307 Euclid Street, Santa 

Monica, California, said he was available for questions. 

 

Chairman Hand stated the applicant’s statement contained word like “urban”, “synergy”, 

“catalyst”, “infill”, but did not contain any statement on Transit Oriented Development 

(TOD) or the site being a “gateway” and asked the applicant his perception of how the 

project was urban or TOD in design. 

 

Mr. Blake replied the unified, walkable space around the perimeter, as well as the 10-foot 

sidewalk added to the urban design, but based on previous conversations with staff, and the 

City’s desire to see the redevelopment areas “cleaned up”, he felt the proposed project was 

appropriate.  He added that whatever changes were made by BH Properties they could be 

incorporated at a later date into a larger TOD or urban design. 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

January 20, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-01-06 Minutes.doc  5 

 

Chairman Hand asked the applicants how they envisioned the proposed changes and the 

property as a “gateway” into the City. 

 

Mr. Blake said the southwest corner of the property was a location that could be used for 

gateway signage; however, since the City had not made a decision for the area BH Properties 

would be amenable for further discussions. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked if there had ever been any discussions on how long BH 

Properties would maintain ownership of the property.  She also wanted to know if the 

applicant was in charge of leasing the office building. 

 

Mr. Blake replied there had been talks about separating the restaurant pad from the rest of the 

property, but nothing had been pursued.  He added that a partner company handled the office 

leasing, which was 93% leased at the current time. 

 

Mr. Blake added that BH Properties understood the City’s vision for making the area an entry 

or focal point and felt their proposal would be an enhancement to the City and the area. 

 

With no other comments or questions in favor or opposed, Chairman Hand closed the public 

hearing. 

 

Commissioner Springs applauded the applicant for their patience in working with the City as 

and felt if there was an ideal place for a drive-thru it would be at a major intersection close to 

a freeway.  He added that he was in favor of keeping the property together and not parceling 

it off and if the area was redeveloped, a 2,000 square foot restaurant would not be a big 

impediment to future redevelopment. 

 

Commissioner Frederick said that while having a vision for a gateway or entry point to the 

City was fine, she was in favor of getting something started in the area instead of waiting 

around for something to happen.  She added that she would be voting in favor of the item. 

 

Commissioner DePuy reported she was not initially excited about the request, but with the 

distance from the DART station, and the surrounding properties including the Spring Valley 

tunnel, the area was difficult to develop.  However, with the right landscaping and the 

understanding the restaurant pad remained part of the larger property, she would vote in 

favor of the item. 

 

Chairman Hand commended the applicant’s attempt to redevelop the property, but felt the 

City was looking to densify areas along major transit routes.  He added that the proposal 

solved some problems that were thrust upon it by the Spring Valley tunnel, but he did not 

think the proposed development was urban in design, was not the correct land use for the 

property, and could impede future redevelopment. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

January 20, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-01-06 Minutes.doc  6 

Commissioner Maxwell agreed with Mr. Hand comments and thought the requested parking 

reduction was excessive.  He said he did not know what the appropriate use was for the site, 

but felt it was not the proposed project and believed it was worth waiting to see what else 

might be submitted in the future. 

 

Chairman Hand added that he thought some form of horizontal or vertical mixed-use that 

could build a linkage to the DART station would be where future guidelines would take the 

property.  He acknowledged that although the property was smaller in size as the Eastside 

development, something similar to that would be preferable to the proposed plan.  

 

Commissioner Springs asked staff if the PD could contain language that would maintain the 

integrity of the parcel. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied the applicant had rights through the City’s Subdivision Code as a 

property owner to subdivide the property if they did so in a manner that complied with the 

code.  He did not think it was possible to restrict the sale or subdivision of the property. 

 

Commissioner Springs said that keeping the parcel together as a whole was preferable, but he 

thought some development or investment in the corridor added value even if it was a 

sandwich shop or a Starbucks.  He did not think it was fair to hold the property owner to a 

standard that has yet to be defined. 

 

Chairman Hand replied that the Starbucks was a postage-sized parcel that was not good for 

anything else and did not compare to the property in question.  He added that the current 

property, because of the close proximity to the DART station, would be a good suburban 

retail service area and putting a drive-thru restaurant there would only delay any future 

revitalization. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell agreed and said that even if the “big picture” development was taken 

out of the equation, he was still against the project because of the layout of the proposed 

project with the rear of the building facing the intersection. 

 

Mr. Chavez stated the building would be finished on all four sides so it would really not have 

a rear side.  He added that the property owner was present and could share his vision on how 

the property could develop in the future. 

 

Mr. Ron Platisha, BH Properties Management, Inc., 4928 Fairwood Circle, Yorba Linda, 

California, stated that as far as future development plans, one of the items to take into 

consideration is the fact the office building was generating a significant amount of profit and 

if someone else wanted to redevelop the property, it would require a large amount of money 

to purchase the property. 

 

Mr. Platisha addressed the issue of keeping the parcels together by stating they viewed the 

restaurant as an amenity for the office building and it would be difficult to have anything 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

January 20, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-01-06 Minutes.doc  7 

other than a sandwich shop as opposed to a sit-down restaurant because the clientele would 

not be there in the evening or on the weekends. 

 

Mr. Platisha stated he understood the City’s vision for revitalization, but as owners of a 

property that was providing a significant profit, redevelopment did not seem likely in the 

near future. 

 

Vice Chair Bright stated at first he was not in favor of the proposed project, but noticed that 

staff’s parking estimates were lower than the applicant’s, and the applicant was proposing 

additional parking.  In addition, he agreed with most of the comments from Mr. Springs with 

the exception that the current site was not that similar to the Starbucks because that property 

was smaller and had a retail strip center behind the site.   

 

Mr. Bright pointed out that if a larger redevelopment project was proposed in the future, 

removing the restaurant site would not pose a problem and he would be voting in favor of the 

item. 

 

Commissioner DePuy stated she agreed with Mr. Bright’s comments and noted the area 

surrounding the proposed site was not really a walkable neighborhood.  In addition, with the 

owner’s success with the office building, she was leaning towards voting in favor of the item. 

 

Commissioner Springs asked if there were any impediments to the owner parceling the 

property off in its current state.   

 

Mr. Shacklett replied the owner could parcel the piece off, but they would have to get a 

parking variance because of the deficiency.  He added that the way the proposed PD was 

written, the conditions state that 177 parking spaces must be provided on the property as 

shown on the concept plan, which would make it conforming. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if the project was approved would it be conforming and could it be 

subdivided.   

 

Mr. Chavez replied the property could be subdivided today, but they would have to meet the 

City’s parking requirements.  He added that the proposed conditions was the same process 

used at Richardson Heights Shopping Center where parking was capped at a certain number 

of spaces no matter how much development occurred in the center. 

 

Mr. Shacklett also pointed out that the cap at the Richardson Heights Shopping Center 

allowed multiple restaurants in the center which otherwise might not have been allowed 

based on the parking. 

 

Commissioner Springs said he was looking for some tool to keep the property from being 

subdivided to protect the longer term interest. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

January 20, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-01-06 Minutes.doc  8 

Mr. Chavez stated a minimum lot size could be established to achieve that goal, but 

cautioned the Commission that establishing a minimum lot size could prevent the property 

owner from subdividing or selling their property, something that had not been done before. 

 

Mr. Platisha said he did not like the idea of a minimum lot size, and they did not have any 

plans to subdivide the property and sell off the pieces; however, circumstances  can change 

over time and if they ever did think of subdividing the property, the use would have to be 

something complimentary to the office building. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 14-

39 as presented with the listed special conditions; second by Vice Chair Bright.  

Motion approved 5-2 with Chairman Hand and Commissioner Maxwell opposed. 

 

ADJOURN 

 

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Hand adjourned the regular business 

meeting at 8:16 p.m. 
 

 

 

__________________________ 

Barry Hand, Chairman 

City Plan Commission 


